UNITED NATIONS

GENERAL 7/
ECONOMIC EgCN;h/SﬁE;l/SR,Ql
18 March 1952
;\ ND ENGLISH

CRIGINAL: FRENCH

SOCIAL COUNCIL

, * COMMISSTON ON HUMAN RIGHTS
SUB-COMMISSION ON FREEDOM OF INFORMATION AND OF THE PRESS
Fifth Session o
SUMMARY FECORD OF THE NINETY-FIRST MEETING
Held at Headquarters, New York,
~on Thursday, 6 March 1952 at 10.55 a.m.
CONTENTS ¢ |
Draft international cods of ethics (E/CN.k/sub.1/151,
E/cn.b /sub.1/151/Add .1, E/ON.L Sub.1/160, B/CN.4 /Sub.1/L.1,
B/CN.L/sub.1/L.2/Rev.1, E/CN.4/Sub.1/L.3, E/CN.L/Sub.1/L.4)

Chairman:  AZMI Bey Egypt:
Rapporteur: Mr. AZKOUL, . - Tebanon
Merbers: - ‘Mr. P. J. CHANG China
My, SILVA CARVALIO . Chile
~ Mr. GERAUD  France
M. LQPEZ "Philippines -
Mr., Z0NOV Union of Soviet Scocialist Rapublics
by, WAITHNAN United Kingdom of Great Britain
and Northern Ireland
Mr. BINDER United States of America
Mr. POLIERT CARRIO  Uruguay .
Mr. PIEIC Yugoslavia

52-3615



E/CN.k4/sub. l/uR 91
Page 2 - .

Representative of aspecialized agency:

Mr, CARNES , United Nations Educational, Scientific
and Culturel- Organlzation ,
(uNEsco) :

Representatives of non-govermmeptal organizations:

Categorx-A:

Miss SENDER ‘ 7“ International Confederation of
Free Trade Unions (ICFTU) ‘

Miss KAHN ‘ ~ Vorld Federation of Trade Unions

o (wymu) :
Secretariat: J . o , :
Mro HUMPHREY Representative of the
Scereiary-General : <
‘Mr. EEK Secretary of the Sub-Commission .

‘DRAFT INTERNATIONAL CODE OF ETHICS (E/cm;h/Sub.l/lal, E/CN.L/Sub.1/151/A44.1,
E/CN.4/Sub,1/160, E/CN.4/Sub,1/L.1, E/CN.4/Sub.1/L.2/Rev,1, E/CN.4/Sub.1/L.3,
E/CN.b4/Sub.1/L.b)

The CHAIRMAN anncunced that, as had been decided the previous
day, the Sub-Commission had to exemine the proposed amendments to the preamble
of the Internationsl code of ethics. ‘

Mr. ZONOV said that, as he had already explained his views at the
rreceding meeting, he would be brief. The purpose of his draft
amendment was to supplement the preamble in such a way as to bring

it into line with the purposes and principles of the United Nations,

Jone of



E/CN i /Sub o1/ SR W91
Page 3

one of which was to “develop friendly relations among nations based on respaect
for the principle of eqpal rlghts and self—determina*ion . That prlnclple should
be expresgsly ment?’ oned in the preamble. The Unlted Natlons had come into being
as a regult of the common struggle of the peoples of the world against fasclsem.
It was therefore necessery, at a time when fascism was sgein showing signe of
rearing ifs:hea&,ito make it clear that ome of the tasks of the workers in the
press and information agencles was to combet the propagation of faseist-nazi
views. While the preamble could still be supplemented in other respects, 1t
should first te amended in the way suggested if the Sub-Commiseion wished to
bring its draft into line with the prineciples of the United Naticns.

Mr. LOPEZ eald that the French title, "code d'konnevr international”,
was more fitting than the English title, "international code of ethics". The

Commission's real purpose was to draft a code which would serve as "a standard of
professional conduet" and not to impose s political or ideologicel méssion on the
press personnel. The Sub-Commiésion ghould theréfore take cere not to introduece
any provisions likely to impose gpecifin duties on journelists into the preamble.
Even 1f war-mongering snd the rebirth of fa3- _om were Treal dangers, as

Mr. Zonov believed, the Commissicn would be golng egeinst its own aims if 1t
inserted the text Mr. Zonov proposed in the preamble of the internatiocnal code
of ethice. The very fact of allowing some journeligts to indulge in war |
propaganda with impunity might have some beneficial results, by providing a means
of identifying the persons responsible for such campaigns and thus of effectlvely
combétting them. In countries such as the USSR, where the publieation of sueh
artinles was forbidden, it was imposgsible to know what wag concealed under the
peaceful statements imposed by conformity to official requirements.

It wes surprising that Mr. Zonov bhad not thought it necesrary to refer
to subversive propaganda. Tt had been seen in many countries that those who
sought to undermine the social order were sll the more dangerous becaﬂée‘they
worked in seeret, He wondered whether the Commission should not go even further
end ssk the press to unmask them and disclose their secret machinations. The
Commission should reject Mr. Zonov!s form of words, the ideological content and
formml. provisions of which hat no place in the prearble of an Irtermatioral code
of ethics. N ' ‘ ’

/The CHAIRMAN



E/CN.L/Sub. 1/35.91
Page L

_ Toe CHAIRMAN recalled that all draft smendments to the preamble should
be submitted before noon on Frlday T March. He therefore wondered whether it
would be better to take a vote on each of the amendmengs as they were submitted
or to delsy voting until the time-limit had expired.

Mr. AZKOUL thought that the Sub Commisslon could not vote on eny of
the amendments until the time-limit had expired.

The CHATIRMAN agreed..

Mr. LOPEZ and Mr. BINDER wondered whether, in order to save time, the
Sub-Commission should not begin to vote on the propdbals before 1t on the
following morning,

; The CHAIRMAN sald that, in additzon to the speakers already on his Llst,
Mr. Moulik had anncunced ‘his 1ntention of subnitting a draft amendment to the
_presmble, He felt that the authors of the amendments already tabled should be
given an opportunity to reconcile their texts in the light of the new proposals
end the discussion to which they had given rlse and, if ne¢essa¢y, to presgent a
modified form of words. | o

In reply to a question by Mr. POLLERI CARRIO the CHAIRMAN conflrmed
that under the rules of procedure the Sub-Commission eould start voting on the

draft amendments at the meeting the next aftﬂrnoon.

He reminded Mr. BINDER that all draftAamendments should be submitted
in writing. | ‘ '

Mr. ZONOV said that he wes in favour of any deéiéion vhich would speed

. up the Sub-Commission's work.

The CHATRMAN pointed out that, as soon as it was clear that none of the
-wembers had any further proposals to make, and after Mx. Moul1k had submitted his
amendment, the Sub-Commigsion sould proceed to the vote at its first meeting

‘pext day or even at its mext meeting that gfternoon.. /
Mr. PLEIC



E/CN4/Suby1/SR.OL
Page 5 ' .

Mr, PLEIC submitted his amendment (E/CN.4/Sub.1/L.2/Rev.l). Freedom
of information was only one of the factors likely to contribute to the pesce;
that was why he proposed that the worde "is essential to the peace" in the
first parsgreph of the preamdble should be replaged by the words "is of great
importence to the pesce",

Nor should the part played by prese persormel be underestimated. The
text of the second parsgraph aleo seemed to go rather too far. It would
therefore be better merely to-state that press persomnel "ecan make a great
contribution towards safegusrding that freedon”.

Finally, in order to emphasize the gupra-mational charaeter of the
code of ethiecs, the third parsgraph should be smended by the inclusion of &
provision inviting press personnel and their organizations to collaborate "at the
international level ... in the interests of pesceful relations between the

peoples".

‘ Mr, LOPEZ stressed the fmet that the first two apendments proposed by
Mr, Pleic would tend to lessen the significance of freedom of the press and to
reduce the importance of the role of Journalists. Fuphssis should be laid on the
importance of freedom of informetion, and the persons for whom the code wes )
designed, that is, the Journalists themselves, should be made clearly to
understand all the respongibilitles they had assumed,

| Mr, BINDER noted that Mr, Pleic's amendment, like that of Mr. Zomov,
seemed to introduce into the code of ethiés ideas which were foreign to those
Journalists of the Western nations and of many other sountries had about thelr
profession. A Journmslist, as an individual, might well try to further
international peace; but he could mot be foreed to become a propegendist for any
1deology whatgoever in the course of his work, That was not the way to further
international peace, Justice and security and freedom for the peoples of the -
world, 1In the democratie countries, honest and conseientious Journalists. sought
above all to find the truth and to report or comment objectively upon the facta.
If the international code of ethies tried to force them to distort or concesl the
truth in the name of any ideology, however noble, they would find the code
igacceptable. In the USSR and Yugoslavia, @a in gome other countries, Journellsts

/cleaxly



E/CN.4/Sub,.1/SR.91
Pnge 6

clegrly had e different idea of their duty. They eonsidered themselves
propegendists, responsidle for distorting or hiding certein facts which did not
£it in with the offiecial version of the truth., It wes true that there might be
1deas of Journaliem other than those current in the democratie countries, dbut no
international code of ethias based upon asuch princiﬁles could hope to be widely
accepted and applied,

Mr, ZONOV, referring to the preceding speaker's remarks said that he had
the impreassion that Mr. Binder vas,vin fact, opposed $o°the draft internstional
code of ‘ethiecs, even in its presénx form, and that he was using speclous arguments
to cover his real mttitude. Moreover, he hsd, on one ocecmssion, let fall a
Tevealing remark in that respect, and certain staﬁementa which had appesred in
his ecountry's press could only bear out the same comeclusion. Furthermore,

Mr. Zonov d1d not for a moment believe that the United States presamught to
repert and comment objectively/%he facts, Everyone knew that that press
systematieally distorted the news, and he was prepared, 1f necessary, to provide
the Sﬁb-Commieaion with further information on the subjeect.

Mr. BINDER had not wished to reply to Mr, Zomov's two attacka upon the
Anmerican press by giving certsgin detalls of the defects of the Soviet press,
eltbough he was in a position to do so, being well informed on the matter. BEe
now wighed, however, nategorieally to demy the intentions Mr. Zonov had
sttributed to him. He did not oppose'thé idea of .8 code as such; but he feared
that it might be difficult to draw up a universally scceptable code in view of
the fact that different countries'had completely differeﬁt ideas of Journalism.
The Americen Society of Newspaper Editors, of which he was s member, had had
since 1923 s code vhich laid down for its members a standsrd of professional
eonduet to which they conformed. He would, perscnally, be delighted to egee the
Sub-Commisgion edopt that code, i1f that were possible. But he stressed the fact
that the statement of certain objections on the subject of a code was a very
different thing from the complete absence of principles; and it was for that
reason that he ?ormally denled Mr, Zonov's observations.

~

/Mr. PLEIC,



E/CN.4/Subel/SRa0L
Page T

o ~ Mr, PLEIC, replylng to.Mr. Lopez, wished to make it @le&r that he had
not intended, in his amendment, to minimize the contribution of press and
informetion persomnel; he merely wished to avoid giving them undue Importaace.
Although the informaetiop facilities available to them were limited, gome countries
enjoyed good neighbourly relations with others. ‘ v ‘
Mr. Binder'!s remarks about his amendments were rather vague and he did .
not see why it could not be emphesized that the leck of wunderstanding between
the press persomnel of various countries was one of the obsgtacles to good relatione
among;peoples; that would state one of the purposes of the code. .

Mr. GERAUD thought that the amendments submitted by Mr, Pleiq and
Mr., ZQnoY“ma@e_the mistake of confusing the conduct of %the JournaliBthith the
partieular policy which Jjournalists might be reqpirédAto fdllow.z It was hardly -
logical, for example, to speak of profegsional integrity in the case of the
Journalist who was bound by a totalitarian poliéy to adopt a specifie positionm.
The idea in Mr. Pleic¢ts third amendment -~ that, if the code of ethigs:
were universally respected, a bénd would be created among the journalists of all
countrles ~-- was new and interesting but it was a possible result of the code
rather than s principle and therefore had no plece in the code., None of
Mr. Pleic's amendments should be retained.

My, WATTHMAN thought that the precise task;6£¢the,journalist should be
clarified and pointed out that in Great Britain the ideml of the journalist was-
not to carry on propaganda, but to respect the truth even i1f it was hard to -
reconcile with hisg argument,

The CEAIRMAN asked Mr. Géraud to introduce his amendments.

Mr. GERAUD explained that bis emendments (E/CN.4/Sub.1/L.3) made no-
changes in substance; they werg drafting changes intended to make the
ideas clearer., s SR e G e e e R
~ He had used the phrase "seek the truth” in the second. paragreph of the
preamble because he considered the truth as.an ideal toward which the ..~
Journalist should constantly strive, apd;gotwas~an'objective‘realitqu,Heg
reserved the right to elucidate his.amendmenys further at a later gtage. .

/Mr. PLEIC



E/um Lhfsub,1/5R, 91
Page 8

Mr. PLEIC asked Mr. Geraud whet substantive difference there was between
his smendments and those he had Kimself Buhmltted.f ’ '
Mr. GERAUD. repeated that he had sought primarlly £0 1mprove the
draftlng, while Mr, Pleic's amendments hot only did not clarify the text bui
perhapsg. further confuged it. TFor example, in the first paragraph he sav no
reagon to distinguish between freedom of informatlon and of the press ahd the
_ether! fundamental freedoms.  The change in- the second paragraph added nothing,
while the amendment to thé third paragraph, 88 he hed already € plalned, could

not be included in the preanmble,

“‘Mr. 'PLEIC still considered that there was no signmficant differenﬁe J"'
between the:text he had. suggested and that of Mr. Geraud.

At Mr., AZKOUL's request, Mr. PLEIC EVplalned why he had submitted
smendments to the originel text. ' S ' S

st
P

- At the inv1tétion of the CHAIRMAN Mr. LOFEZ 1ntroduced his amendments i
(E/CN h/Sub 1/L.4) and explained that they were intended Tirgt, to ellminate -
¢erta1n anbiguities in the original text; secondly, whenever posaible, to use:v
expresgliong which had become familiasr because they had been uaed in the
resolutions of the General Assembly, the’ Eeonomic and Soc1al Council or the B
Sub-Commisesion; and, thirdly, to ‘meet the objeutlons raieed by professlonal
asaociatlons in their comments, by* Geeking to improve the style. ' '
Accordingly, in the first paragraph of the prearble, he had reproduced a
the text of General Assembly resolution 59 of 14 December 1946, In view of the
comments made by*various-associgtiéné, he had considéred it neaééééry in the
seeond paragraph to refer explicitly to the persomnel "of the various media of
information", In the same paragraph, he had replaced the‘wordsi“EOnstaatly
maintaining and promoting” by "constantly striving to meintain ard pronote the
highest.ss" in order to impress upon Journalists the idea that their task vasg to”
fight indefatigably. Findlly, he hed ' preferred to replace the last sentcrae of
the origlnal text, which peemed ambiguous, by’ 8 woralng whleh hed already been ‘
uged in the ‘summary records of the Sub-Cormisalon's dlscussions at 1ts first
session, when it had endeavoured to work out what” should be the ohjebtlves of the

press. /Mr. BINDER



E/CN.4/Sub.1/SR.S1
Page . 9 -

Mr. BINDER welcomed Mr. Lopez's arendmenvs beesuse they markedly
improved the drafting. He also congratulated Mr, Lopez upon having changed the
second paragraph of the preamble to take into asccount the desire expressed by
the Motion Picture Association of America that the code should deal with freedom
of the various media of fuformation, not only of the press. He had some doubt,
however, about the meaning of the phrese "with complete fidelity to the truta”,
Those words might give the impression that there wes such a thing as a core of
truth or mbsolute criteria for which the State was answerable, and from which
there could be no departure, While it was true that all men, without exception,
pought the truth, the concept of truth nevertheless remained somewhat relative
and variable. Only in totalitarian States hed it been possible to build up a
core of dogma through ¢ffieisl indostrination and represent it ss inviolable truth.

- Thet was also one of the reasons why he had not been eble to support
'Mr. Pleic's amendment. " Mr, Pleic bhad maintained at one of the earlier sessions
of the Sub-Commission that the State ghould establish organs to control '
information. In the United States the right of the State to determine the
criterion for assessing the truth was not recognized. In the American view, the
men wﬁo held power temporarily were considered as fallible as others and were
held responsible for their actions in the same way aé every cltizen.

For all those reasoms, Mr. Binder asked Mr. lLopez whether he would agree
either to replace the words "with complete fidelity to the truth" by the word
"loyally"”, or to add the phrase "ns he understands it" after the word "truth".
With that change, he was vrepared to accept Mr., Lopez's amendment.

In the seeond paragraph of Mr, Lopez's amendment, Mr. CHANC would
like to replace the word "news" by the word "events!; the latter term was

.

more general.

Mr. GERAUD wished to explain his amendment more fully.
In the firsgt paragraph of the preamble, he had inserted the words

"freedom of the press" to meet the wishes expressed by the Agsociation suisse des

gditeurs de Journaux and by the Union rdﬁande de Jjournaux. He had deleted the
word "all" from the phrase "all the fundamental frecdoms" solely for euphony and
to make the sentence less ponderous., Finally, he proposed to change his own
amendment by replacing the words "and the exercise of fundamentsl freedoms" by

/"and 1t



E/cNl/sub, 1/33.91
Page 10 .

"and it bas often proved to be the most; vulneragble of the fundementsl freedoms”.
The only purpose of his amendment to the sécond paragpapqxwas to eliminate the
ambiguity of the very confused original draft. The chenge in the third
.paragraph of the preamble broadened and complemented the ideas in the original
text, He had not retained the word "rule" because the code actually stated
prlnclples and did not lay down rules of behaviour.
~ In his amendment to article I he had added after the word "check“
the words "to the best of their ebility" because there was not always one single
and universaelly recognized truth.. , A
In artiele II, he had replaced the phrase "personal interest” by
"seeking personal advantege" because personsl interest was not necessarily
: reprehénsible in all cagses. In paragraph 2 of the article, he was suggésting
that;only.caLumny and defamation veoluntarily committed should be cbnsidered to
"be professional offences. Lastly, in paragraph 3, he felt that tbe word
"spontaneously” should be substituted for the word "voluntarily" because thé_
latter word sometimes implied the existence of outside presgure.
In conclusion, he proposed that thc Sub-Commission ghould set up a
drafting committee to redraft and, if necessary, to combine the various texts

accepted by the Sub-Commission.

bThe'CEAIRMAN shared that view but proposed that the question should

be congidered st the next meeting.

Mr, ZONOV asked that ali the texts of the amendments and proposals
should henceforth ve translated into Russian.,

Mr. SILVA CARVALLO sagked that they should slso be translatedvinto
Spanish,.

Mr, EEK (Secretariat) paid that the Secretariat would do its best to
see that the relevant texts were translated into Russian and Spanlsh.

After a brief discusqzor‘ in vhich Vr. Azkoul sugpested that 10, 30 Bells

on
/Fri&ay, T March ghould be the tinme-~limit for the cucn1551on of amgndmevts, the

Sub-Commigsion, at the Chairman's suggestion, decided %o contﬂnue consideration

of the smendments at the next meeting and to vote on them ndt later than the

close of the morning meeting the next day.

The mceting rose at 1 p.m.






